
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Meeting Notice  
 

 

Please note that there will not be a 6:00 p.m. Newport Planning Commission 

work session meeting held prior to the regular 7:00 p.m. session on 

Monday, April 28, 2014.   
 

 

 



Please Note:  ORS197.763(6):  “Unless there is a continuance, if a participant so requests before the conclusion of the initial evidentiary hearing, the record shall 
remain open for at least seven days after the hearing.”  (applicable only to quasi-judicial public hearings)  

 

 

 

 

 
 

AGENDA & NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 
The Planning Commission of the City of Newport will hold a meeting at 7:00 p.m. Monday, April 28, 2014, at the Newport City Hall, Council 

Chambers, 169 SW Coast Hwy., Newport, OR 97365.  A copy of the meeting agenda follows. 

 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities.  A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other accommodations 

for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City Recorder, 541-574-0613. 

 

The City of Newport Planning Commission reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and discuss any 

other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting. 

 
NEWPORT PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, April 28, 2014, 7:00 p.m. 

AGENDA 

 

A. Roll Call.  

 

B. Approval of Minutes. 

 

1.  Approval of the Planning Commission work session and regular session meeting minutes of April 14, 2014.    

 

C. Citizens/Public Comment. 

 

1.  A Public Comment Roster is available immediately inside the Council Chambers.  Anyone who would like to address 

the Planning Commission on any matter not on the agenda will be given the opportunity after signing the Roster.  Each 

speaker should limit comments to three minutes.  The normal disposition of these items will be at the next scheduled 

Planning Commission meeting.  

 

D. Consent Calendar. 

 

E. Action Items. 

  

F. Public Hearings. 

 

 1.  File No. 2-CUP-14.  Consideration of a request submitted by Oregon Brewing Co., Inc. (Dennis Bartoldus, authorized 

representative) (Port of Newport, property owner) for approval of a conditional use permit in order to add approximately 

10,600 square feet of warehouse and barrel fabrication space to an existing building currently being used for warehouse, 

barrel fabrication, and distillation.  The request involves property located at 2150 SE Marine Science Drive (Tax Map 11-

11-17 portion of Tax Lot 111), which is located in a W-2/“Water-Related” zone.   

   

G. New Business. 

  

H. Unfinished Business. 

  

I.  Director Comments. 

 

J.  Adjournment. 

 



1    Planning Commission Work Session 4/14/14. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Commissioners Present:  Jim Patrick, Bill Branigan, Gary East, Mark Fisher, Rod Croteau, Jim McIntyre, and Bob 

Berman. 

 

Citizens Advisory Committee Members Present:  Lee Hardy, Suzanne Dalton, and Dustin Capri.  

 

City Staff Present:  Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos, Library Director Ted Smith, and Executive 

Assistant Wanda Haney.  

 

Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:02 p.m. and turned the meeting over to CDD Tokos.   

 

A.    New Business. 

 

1.    Review of Updated Library Goals, Objectives, and Strategies (File No. 2-CP-14) for potential action in regular session.  
Tokos noted that he had invited Ted Smith to join the meeting to walk through the different goals, objectives, and strategies the 

Library has been working on.  He noted that after this presentation and asking questions, if the Commissioners are comfortable 

with it, they can initiate legislative policy update to the Comprehensive Plan in tonight’s regular session.  Tokos turned the 

presentation over to Smith for him to give the background on why and how this document came to be. 

 

Smith said that their last strategic plan was done in 2004.  Ever since he got here in 2009, he wanted to do a plan with a building 

analysis and have someone look at infrastructure and IT issues and give an idea of what can be done within the footprint the 

library is on without expansion.  Also to look at what we could do in the community and in the Library to increase efficiencies 

and make more space and keep as many books as we have.  The Library Foundation gave some money, and he had consultants 

come in and prepare this strategy.  He noted that there is more to the original document.  Tokos had provided the strategies, but 

didn’t include the details.  Smith said the consultants went out to the community and had focus groups with teachers and home-

schooling parents.  They held meetings in the Library with advocates and meetings where they invited people randomly.  The 

consultants asked questions about how they used the Library.  They talked to leaders in the community.  The result of all of those 

talks with residents and leaders is the strategic plan here.  He noted that basically they find that they have three strategies 

externally, which focus on life enrichment and life skills and that create young readers.  He said the Library is doing a pretty 

good job of meeting a lot of needs people expect them to do.  There are a few things to tweak, but they are basically meeting the 

external needs; they just need to do more of the same and get more efficient.  The internal strategy is basically to remodel the 

library.  He noted that the Library has 90-inch-high shelving, and patrons have to climb on small stools.  While doing that, some 

of the older patrons have found it hard to read through the bottom of the lens of their bifocals.  What they found was that you can 

make room by taking out shelving, put some high-use DVDs in a vending kiosk similar to a Red Box; and that creates more 

space for patrons, seating, and meetings.  The Library only has one meeting room and an informal conference room.  They can 

reconfigure the shelving in the Library for height.  In the children’s area, they can reconfigure seating so the parents and kids can 

meet together.  Now the parents are estranged from the kids because there isn’t enough room for the parents to sit on the floor 

like the kids.  He said there is some work to do.  Smith is writing grants to pay for as much of this as possible.  The Library Board 

is committed to whatever is needed.   

 

Branigan asked if this has to go to the City Council.  Tokos said it is the existing Library Services section in the Comprehensive 

Plan that needs to be amended because it is out-of-date; and this is the type of effort you would use to do that.  It will require 

public hearings before the Planning Commission and the City Council.  Tokos said that he was talking to Smith, and one of the 

things they will have to talk about is how to work this into the Comprehensive Plan by reframing it as City objectives as opposed 

to Library Committee services.  It will just take some wordsmithing.  Branigan noted that these are aggressive goals.  Smith 

agreed and said that he didn’t know if they would be able to hit them; but it is an aiming point.  In addition, he noted that the 

Library is considered to serve 18,000 Lincoln County residents. 

   

Croteau asked if they are looking at increasing square footage 40%, how they will do that.  Smith said they would add to the 

footprint they have to the west side as far as to the ravine; and on the north side to the parking lots.  He said if they went much 

farther north, they would have to acquire land.  In addition, parking is as dire a need.  The lower parking lot is used when people 

can’t find a place to park; so it gets full too.  When the disabled park there, they have to roll their chairs all the way around and 

back up.  There is no outside elevator.  East asked if there is any plan to access the lower parking lot.  Smith said yes if there is 

an expansion; but the initial plan is not opening walls.  There is a door downstairs, but it is a one way door and can’t be used 

Draft MINUTES 

City of Newport Planning Commission 

Work Session 

Newport City Hall Conference Room ‘A’ 

Monday, April 14, 2014 

 



2    Planning Commission Work Session 4/14/14. 

when there is a meeting down there.  Smith said that the City owns all of the ravine and over to Literacy Park.  He thought they 

may be able to put in a big culvert and expand the parking or build there.   

 

Fisher said that he is a great user and supporter of the Library.  He noted that in the 90s when he was on the school budget 

committee, he noticed that they were putting aside most extra money for computer systems and equipment and all to the detriment 

of getting more library books.  He tried to make a case each year.  He thinks our Library for a town this size is remarkable.  He 

said that he actually appreciated the self-check-out of books, which works so easily and so well.  He would like to see getting 

funding from other grants and entities.  He said the Library does have a lot of books there; and he hopes this won’t be to the 

detriment of increasing the number of books.  Berman said he found the hours to be most impressive.  He also would like to see 

an expansion of public meeting space.  Smith agreed that is one of the biggest issues they have out there.  Fisher added that he 

also appreciates the children’s section downstairs.  He said we need to hook children into reading and using books; and McIntyre 

added, at an early age.   

 

Dalton said that she also truly values the Library and the concept of a more comprehensive plan.  She said maybe she missed it 

when she reviewed this, but asked Smith who was surveyed.  She wondered if they surveyed the youth.  Smith said there were 

13 youths on one committee.  There was a group of 20 people randomly pulled from the community; and there were 35-40 

educators that use the Library regularly.  They went to Head Start and had meetings with the teachers and parents; and they heard 

from home teachers.  There were individual interviews with community leaders to get a feel for the community and how the 

community views the Library; and they got very positive things out of that.  Smith said they tried to cover as much of the 

community as they could.  Dalton asked if there was anyone for whom English is their second language.  Smith said that most 

of those at Head Start are Spanish-speakers.  He said they have a lot of information.  Also, the Library has bilingual story time; 

and they are getting a lot of feedback from those parents. 

 

Branigan asked how they got the consultants; is that her specialty.  Smith said yes; and a facilities planner from San Francisco; 

and the IT person that works with libraries in Portland, and an interior designer.   

 

Fisher noted that Tokos’ memo says that in regular session, if the Commission wants, we would recommend that this study that 

Smith put together be adopted and referred on to the City Council.  Tokos said the Commission would initiate amendments to 

the Library section of the Comprehensive Plan.  He would be working with Smith and bringing a draft back to the Planning 

Commission for public hearing.  Patrick said this is just starting the process.  Tokos said an amendment needs either the City 

Council or Planning Commission to initiate.  It would just be a motion to initiate the amendment process. 

 

The group thanked Smith and told him that the study was a very nice piece of work.                                     

 

2.    Discussion about pursuing regulatory options for medical marijuana dispensaries as provided in SB1531.  Tokos noted that 

at their April 7th meeting, the City Council put in place a temporary moratorium on medical marijuana dispensaries within city 

limits.  That option was made available with passage of SB 1531 in March.  SB 1531 authorized temporary moratorium until 

May 1, 2015, unless rescinded sooner; and that is what the City Council chose to put in place.  It also allows reasonable regulations 

to be imposed on medical marijuana facilities.  Tokos said those of a zoning nature would be in terms of further refining where 

these facilities would be allowed within commercial, industrial, and mixed use zones; and hours of operation.  There is a provision 

for other reasonable conditions that may be non-land-use-related.  The City Council referred this to the Planning Commission to 

explore whether or not to provide a recommendation if the City should be pursuing any of these options in terms of reasonable 

regulations under SB 1531.  It was sent for the Planning Commission to work through whether any specific changes should be 

pursued through City regulations.  Berman asked if these would be over and above what the State set up; and Tokos confirmed 

that.  He said the Council also wanted to make sure that the process to make a recommendation provides for input from those 

interested in establishing medical marijuana dispensaries; and several of those folks were in attendance at this meeting.  Tokos 

said he looked at the land use code; and unlike some jurisdictions, we go by categories and not by individual land uses anymore.  

We made that change because we recognized that with a 20-page SIC listing, they needed to be constantly updated; and it just 

wasn’t prudent.  He said that the way our code is set up makes it challenging to pull out a particular use and say that this one is 

restricted from Tourist Commercial for instance.  It would look at the entire category and whether it was inappropriate.   

 

Tokos said that his sense is that we might want to tackle this in a couple of work sessions to address the threshold and whether 

there’s any reason to pursue this further on the land-use side.  He thought that land use isn’t the place to go.  If there are any 

restrictions, it would likely be non-land-use; like if the Police Department wants enhanced background checks.  It could be an 

endorsement to the business license and probably not code.  Tokos suggested a couple of work sessions.  Invite those interested 

to weigh in whether they believe there are any additional types of regulations that would be prudent.  Similarly, invite the Police 

to weight in.  Work through this in a couple of work sessions to get to the point to say that we discussed and thought about this 

and come up with a letter back to the City Council indicating where we think they should go before taking it through a full 

process.  That is how we have addressed some of the issues the Council has sent back to the Commission; we have sent a written 

response back.  Tokos suggested tackling this matter that way.  Dalton wondered if that could also include learning what other 

cities nearby are doing.  Tokos said yes, that could be part of the work session process.   



3    Planning Commission Work Session 4/14/14. 

 

Fisher noted that he’s not opposed to using medical marijuana.  But he read this, he noticed that is says “governing body of city 

or county may;” and he’s thinking that we already have the County Health Department that does licensing for restaurants and 

food events, and the State already has set up a body of people knowledgeable in dispensing such drugs (pharmacies).  He is not 

convinced that we have an obligation to set up an actual business code saying here is what you have to do.  He’s not sure that we 

shouldn’t recommend referring this to the County; maybe they are the proper body and should be doing that in concert with the 

State Pharmacy Board.  He didn’t know if anybody at the table is qualified to set up these rules and know how it should be done 

properly.  Patrick said that he didn’t see how this can be done through zoning without doing some major monkey-wrenching.  He 

agrees that the Commission can do the hearing and can ask what kind of rules they would like to see.  Berman thought that the 

whole mechanism with the VRDs and the business license endorsement was a good approach.  Then we can get as specific as 

we want and come up with a list of conditions.  Patrick agreed that process worked pretty well.  Berman thought that would be a 

good mechanism for implementing something if it were to occur.  Croteau said from a land-use aspect, it is medical marijuana, 

and we have facilities that sell medical supplies.  That is the way it should be handled.  He didn’t see a valid reason to separate 

them.  Hardy agreed and asked why they are any different than pharmacies.  McIntyre said that they are really controlled by the 

Oregon Health Authority.  Patrick said he could see this being controversial so the Commission could take the approach like we 

did with the VRDs; talk to the people who want to dispense and to the Police Department.  Tokos said it would create a structured 

process for people to provide information to us so that we have it for the next work session.  Interested parties can submit what 

types of reasonable restrictions are prudent if any.  The Commission can discuss those at the next work session and provide to 

the City Council how we want to pursue changes or if it’s set hard enough.  Then in letter form, he’ll prepare and bring back a 

response to the Council at the regular meeting for Commission approval.  Tokos wondered if that seemed reasonable.  Berman 

said it is a starting point and lets public input come in from various sources to say why and if there should be any additional 

restrictions above what are there already.  McIntyre agreed.  Capri said we could invite those that would be upset, like certain 

neighborhoods, and those that will have an opinion about it.  Fisher said he didn’t think that we can get through this in one two-

hour evening.  We will have groups of people coming in.   

 

Branigan wondered if anyone had contacted Vancouver, Washington or any other city in Washington.  He said there has to be 

some cities that have gone through a lengthy process.  Tokos said that he can certainly reach out and see what other jurisdictions 

are doing with SB 1531 if anything and can report back on that.  East said some surrounding cities are not going to pursue a 

moratorium.   

 

From the audience, Lou Limbrunner, asked why the City Attorney wasn’t present.  Tokos said it’s not necessary; we are just 

talking about the process to solidify information.  Limbrunner said this affects the business licenses.  These people made decisions 

that cost lots of money.  Tokos said that’s not the question before the Commission right now.  Limbrunner noted that the State 

already has rules and regulations in place.  Tokos said that he understood.  Again, Tokos asked if the work session approach 

seemed reasonable; and the consensus was that it did.  Berman said we will need good publicity.  Patrick wanted to make sure 

that we hear from both sides.  He thought the work session was best.   

 

Audience member Jack O’Neil suggested looking at the OHA rules and regulations final draft.  He said it is comprehensive and 

he believes covers most of the bases.  He said it is written very carefully and requires security and very stringent accountability.  

He said the zoning is addressed just like Tokos had mentioned.  He noted that around the country, other cities and local 

governments have tried to adopt regulations to ban this based on other business association in a given area.  Other businesses 

might protest even though it is zoned correctly.  He said the courts have been ruling pretty consistently in favor of the State 

zoning regulations as opposed to neighbors heavily protesting this existence.  He said the State did put a lot into this thing and 

covered it pretty thoroughly.  He said he is unsure what local jurisdictions are looking for.  O’Neil said that he has been operating 

a dispensary for two and a half years.  At this point he is dealing with the State and trying to be compliant.  He said he can’t 

imagine how this could get more stringent.  His dispensary is in Salem.  He had a good video system, but he had to completely 

redo it because it wasn’t good enough for the State.  They also seem very serious about their regulations.  When you read them, 

you wonder if they have the ability or intent to regulate to that extent.  Berman thought the document from the Health Authority 

would be a good thing to include.  Tokos said absolutely.   

 

Tokos said he would envision that the next work session would be the first one in May.  That’s four weeks from now.  We can 

provide three weeks’ outreach and pull information together for that meeting.  Dalton asked if it’s appropriate when we do the 

announcement of the public meeting to also cite the law and the Health Authority resource that was referenced.  Tokos said what 

he was thinking of is that basically this is an opportunity for interested folks to provide feedback about what, if any, reasonable 

regulations should be considered in work session.  We don’t have anything that is appropriate for a hearing at this point.  We 

may not want to go down the path of any changes and just kick back to the Council that the Commission doesn’t see any 

reasonable regulations to pursue.  He is cautious about public hearings right off the bat because that is inviting testimony, and 

they don’t know what to testify to.  That is why he is framing this in a work-session-structured way for input of what they think 

should be considered or why not.  That gives the Commission time to digest it and talk about it as a group and decide where you 

want to go.   

 



4    Planning Commission Work Session 4/14/14. 

Limbrunner asked if any other municipality is doing this.  Tokos said that Lincoln County did put in a temporary moratorium.  

Limbrunner said that Toledo already has one; and Yachats and Lincoln City are not doing this.  Tokos said that is possible.  He 

will see what other jurisdictions are doing.   

 

O’Neil had one comment regarding the problems with the issuance of the business licenses.  He asked if it was possible to come 

up with some sort of timeframe.  He said if they have a timeframe, they can deal more easily with some of these problems that 

are happening so suddenly.  He said that they ran into this at the last minute and were already tied into leases and commitments.  

He said a timeframe would really be helpful. 

 

Fisher thought that the City Council was clear that this moratorium isn’t going to be quickly recalled.  They are serious about 

putting this off awhile to see what the Planning Commission comes up with.  Tokos thought the initial step with May 12 th is 

reasonable to provide three weeks for comments and is moving along in a timely manner.  If what the Commission determines it 

wants to do is a recommendation for specific changes or report back to the City Council why we don’t think it should be pursued, 

he can bring that back to the second meeting in May at the regular session for the Commission to consider.  After May 12 th, if 

the Planning Commission directs Tokos to prepare additional changes that will have to go through public hearing, which would 

be four weeks out; possibly the first meeting in June.  Tokos said those are the two paths.  We are moving as timely as we can 

and also respecting that we need to do meaningful outreach and get information to the Planning Commission.                          

 

 B.    Unfinished Business. 

 

1.    Further discussion regarding the feasibility of the formation of a North Side Urban Renewal District.  Tokos said that he 

hoped everyone had read through the final report.  He said what he tried to do was summarize the revisions in a memo.  He noted 

that the revenue sharing provisions were clarified on page 3.  We had talked about it not being clear with the different thresholds 

you see.  They cleared up the 10% and the partial revenue of 12.5%.  There are additional details provided regarding compression 

including the trend, and that was moved up in the report.  Street labeling was improved on the map so you can read it.  Tokos 

thought they did a nice job of cleaning up the tables, and the summary on Exhibit 3 was a good one.  Croteau asked if the total 

column was only of the large option.  Tokos said what that is saying is the large option includes those elements; and the small 

and middle do not include those.  Looking at Exhibit 3, the small and mid means those aren’t further projects at all; they are in 

the large to that amount (100%, 50%, 75%, and so forth).  Tokos said he had a conversation with ECO about this; and they held 

with 4.5% growth forecast.  They asked if we really want to do 3.65% because 4.5% is realistic; and they felt that 3.65% is too 

conservative.  They said that was taking in a recession that we are unlikely to see again.  ECO said that 4.5% is more typical and 

is reasonably conservative.  Tokos noted that this is the feasibility study, and if you form a plan based on 4.5% growth that 

doesn’t mean that can’t be refined.  He said in South Beach we went with 7.1% growth because that seemed reasonable in 2008.  

That changed, and we adjusted it down to 3% based on experience.  You can make course corrections after you make the plan.  

If you don’t meet it, that means less money coming in and less projects.  Berman asked if that is the rate only within the plan 

area or citywide.  Tokos said the 4.5% should be just in the plan area.  He continued noting corrections by saying that they cleared 

up the error in the TIF forecasts in Exhibits 6, 7, and 8.  He said he talked to them about truncating the tables and why not stop 

them at the year they retire; and that is what they did.  He asked them if they would flag the year when we would be closing the 

South Beach District because the entities will be getting an infusion back; and they footnoted that.  Croteau asked if 2026 is 

realistic; and Tokos said it is shown as 2027 on the tables, which is realistic but we may actually close sooner.  At that point we 

would have $2.8 million in annual TIF revenue that will roll back to the taxing districts.  ECO added a new section to the report 

to address impacts to taxing districts.  Tokos said that he didn’t appreciate fully until he had a talk with ECO that school districts 

are held harmless.  It is picked up through a State formula, which funds based on student population.  The school district is not 

going to get impacted.  You also have compression, so the loss in property taxes to schools in the near term wouldn’t be as 

significant anyway because of the compression issue.  If an urban renewal district passes, the school district is losing a half 

million dollars to compression; that shifts to general government, and the school district will no longer lose that.  That clarified 

the school a little bit, which was helpful.  Existing GO bonds are not affected by the creation of a new urban renewal district.  

The pool bond would not be affected.  They clarified that all three options assume that for certain projects there will be other 

funding partners; the middle just assumes the most.  Tokos caught a typographical error in the tables where fairgrounds was 

misspelled and will pass that on to ECO.   

 

Tokos said his thoughts for next steps is for him to take this to the taxing entities and have a conversation with each of them and 

bring that information back to the Planning Commission.  He noted that City Manager Nebel wants to participate in that.  Tokos 

said the City Council will get this document so they can start looking at it; maybe at their next work session.  As feedback, Tokos 

noted that the new City Manager read this report.  Nebel has been digging through all kinds of documents trying to get up to 

speed and familiarize himself with things; and he said that this gave him a better sense of how these different issues are 

intertwined.  Tokos said that’s good to hear.  Other entities that don’t deal with urban renewal will read this and share their candid 

thoughts.   

 

Berman wondered if the City Council asked the Planning Commission to take a look at this.  Tokos said this came out of a 

recommendation in the Economic Opportunity Analysis.  This was one of the key recommendations out of that.  The Council 



5    Planning Commission Work Session 4/14/14. 

wanted to get this policy going.  The TAC group was formed from a large group from the taxing entities and businesses in the 

community.  Croteau asked if other taxing entities will see this report.  Tokos said that is his thought.  We’re not in a rush, but 

want to move timely.  Berman said that he sees three serious impacts.  The school district essentially has no impact.  The County 

out of their $12 million, they could at least get a $3 million contribution back in their new building.  Tokos said the hospital 

district similarly.  They will have a near-term hit; but they will see that we are programing in projects benefiting them because 

otherwise they would have to spend money on them.  Tokos noted that the taxing entities don’t have veto power; but we want 

everyone going the same direction.  Patrick agreed that we want to do a good sales job.                 

 

2.  Discussion regarding urban renewal collection on tax statement.  Berman had provided a sheet to explain a city’s urban 

renewal tax calculations.  He told Fisher the bottom line is that $8,800, if there hadn’t been any urban renewal, is money that he 

still would have paid.  Berman explained that you start with an URD, you define an area, and come up with a frozen base.  It’s 

the assessed value on the day it’s set up in that area.  The next year that assessed value goes up by some percent; say 3%.  So that 

3% is a countable number; you know how much that is.  You can say what city taxes would have to be to generate that much 

money.  If city tax was $1 per thousand, a million dollars in increment then would be 1/100 of 1%.  You simply apply that rate 

to the whole city.  It raises exactly the same as if you applied the full tax rate in the small district.  In the example he provided, 

with urban renewal, urban renewal would raise $3,449; the city would raise $86,916.  The sum of that is $90,366, which is what 

the total taxes would have been if there hadn’t been an URD.  You figure the rate adjustment for all taxing districts and subtract 

it out and apply it to everybody.  Tokos said that’s the way the assessor would chose to calculate the amount payable to urban 

renewal.  That is strictly what would be going from the frozen base in the district.  That is a given.  If the frozen base means a 

half million dollars to urban renewal; next year the county could take it on just within that district.  It’s easier to calculate it 

citywide.  Fisher said the bottom line is that some of the entities he has been paying taxes to are getting less money that is now 

going to an URA.  He said it is not an accurate way to reflect it.  His statement shows him paying into urban renewal whether or 

not the bottom line changes.  There is some money not going to these others because it’s been reduced.  Berman said the rate 

presented on these tax statements was the same reason he started asking.  He agreed that this is poor presentation.  Fisher said 

the bottom line is that money would have gone to other entities if it didn’t go into urban renewal; and that is not right.  He said 

$20 million over ten years is not right.  Patrick said that people in the district paid more money.  They paid more than they were 

supposed to.  Fisher said he shouldn’t have had money that he was paying to other entities taken away.  It should have gone 

where he was paying it instead of into an URA.  Fisher said he will have a hard time voting for a new urban renewal district 

because it will make this more egregious.  Berman agreed they would take more from other entities.  Again, Fisher said that isn’t 

right.  Berman said that is how State regulations are written.  Dalton said she appreciated what they just shared.  Tokos said it 

doesn’t reflect how it’s displayed here.  Fisher said they can explain it away all day; but it isn’t right.                                      

 

C.  Adjournment.  Having no further time for discussion, the work session meeting adjourned at 7:02 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

______________________________  

Wanda Haney,  

Executive Assistant  



1  Planning Commission meeting minutes 4/14/14. 

Draft Minutes 

City of Newport Planning Commission  

Regular Session 

Newport City Hall Council Chambers 

Monday, April 14, 2014 

 

 

Commissioners Present:  Jim Patrick, Jim McIntyre, Rod Croteau, Mark Fisher, Gary East, Bill Branigan, and Bob Berman. 

 

City Staff Present: Community Development Director Derrick Tokos and Executive Assistant Wanda Haney. 

 

A.  Roll Call.  Chair Patrick called the meeting to order in the Council Chambers of Newport City Hall at 7:03 p.m.  On roll call, 

Berman, McIntyre, Croteau, Patrick, Fisher, East, and Branigan were present.   

 

B. Approval of Minutes. 
 

1.   Approval of the Planning Commission work session and regular session meeting minutes of February 24, 2014, and the work 

session meeting minutes of March 24, 2014. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Fisher, seconded by Commissioner East, to approve the Planning Commission minutes as 

presented.  The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.   

 

C.   Citizen/Public Comment.  No comments on non-agenda items.   

 

D. Consent Calendar.  Nothing on the consent calendar. 

 

E. Action Items. 

 

1.    Initiate a Comprehensive Plan amendment to adopt the Library Goals, Objectives, and Strategies (File No. 2-CP-14). 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Fisher, seconded by Commissioner McIntyre, to initiate a Comprehensive Plan amendment 

to adopt the Library goals and strategies as presented in work session (File No. 2-CP-14).  The motion carried unanimously in a 

voice vote.   

 

2.    Consideration of appointing Karen Wilson as an additional member to the Nye Beach Design Review Overlay Ad Hoc Work 

Group.  The consensus was to have as much input as we can from Nye Beach residents and business owners.  Patrick noted that Ms. 

Wilson had attended the first Ad Hoc meeting.  

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Fisher, seconded by Commissioner Croteau, to appoint Karen Wilson to the Nye Beach 

Design Review Overlay Ad Hoc Work Group.  The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

F. Public Hearings.   

 

Patrick opened the public hearing portion of the meeting at 7:06 p.m. by reading the statement of rights and relevance.  He asked the 

Commissioners for declarations of conflicts of interest, bias, ex parte contacts, or site visits.  Croteau and Branigan declared site 

visits.  Patrick asked for objections to any of the Commissioners or the Commission as a whole hearing this matter; and none were 

heard.     

 

1. File No. 1-UGB-14 / 1-CP-14.  Consideration of a request submitted by Newport Assisted Living, LLC (Andrew Plant, 

Managing Member) (Bob Parker & Beth Goodman of ECONorthwest, authorized representatives) for a minor amendment to the 

Newport Urban Growth Boundary to include an approximately 0.61-acre site in order to construct an addition to the Oceanview 

Senior Living facility.  The proposal would also include an amendment to the Newport Comprehensive Plan map designating the 

subject site High Density Multi-family Residential.  The Planning Commission will make a recommendation to the City Council on 

this matter. 

 

Patrick opened the public hearing for File No. 1-UGB-14 / 1-CP-14 at 7:07 p.m. by reading the summary of the file from the agenda 

and then called for the staff report.  Tokos noted that before the Commission was a request for a minor amendment to the UGB.  He 

noted that the required findings can be found in the “Urbanization” and the “Administration” sections of the Plan.  The first set is 

based on land need, and the second set is on boundary location.  He read through these required findings.  Also there is a need to 

demonstrate compliance with applicable Statewide Planning Goals unless an exception is taken to a particular goal.  Tokos noted 

that these findings were addressed by ECO in Attachment C.  He noted that Bob Parker from ECONorthwest was attending the 

meeting and could answer any questions.  Tokos said effectively what the Commission will find is an argument that due to 



2  Planning Commission meeting minutes 4/14/14. 

demographics changes there is a need for memory care.  Tokos explained that Newport Assisted Living also operates Ocean View 

Senior Living facility.  They are looking to do a 48-bed addition, with the first phase being 24 beds.  The 0.61 acres for the expansion 

will need to get slightly bigger because in addition to bringing in the land they acquired from the City as part of as property line 

adjustment, a 50-foot right-of-way also needs to be brought in to make it easier to extend the road to provide access to the addition.  

Tokos said that if the Commission is inclined to make a favorable recommendation to the City Council, that stipulation should be 

included in a motion.  Tokos said that regarding the boundary, the applicant did a good job explaining how with the high cost of 

these types of facilities it is very efficient to bring it in at this location where there is already staff qualified to provide this type of 

care and is an aggregation of comparable uses.  As he noted, the location is in the Iron Mountain Quarry area.  If this is brought into 

the UGB and later annexed and zoned, at that time the Iron Mountain Impact Area (IMIA) Overlay will be applied.  Before 

development, they would have to record a covenant that they would not object to the continued operation of the quarry.  He said this 

is a matter of Statewide Planning Goal 5 (production of aggregate resources), which the State filters down to local governments to 

insure that conflicting uses don’t put aggregate uses out of business.  That is typically what happens, and that is what these rules are 

intended for.  Fisher asked if there is no problem with the quarry and the additional building harming one another.  Tokos said there 

shouldn’t be.  There can be noise, truck traffic, and a certain amount of dust; but he is not aware of complaints from the existing 

senior living facility.  The quarry is not entitled to do physical harm to their neighboring properties.  For instance, they are not 

entitled to do blasting.  Those building the new addition recognize there is a quarry; and they will probably design it for 

soundproofing and potential vibration.  Branigan said there is a lot of timber beyond the addition.  Tokos said that is correct; but by 

expanding the UGB, that doesn’t have an impact on that.  There are existing easement rights across their property.  That is 

independent of this action.  East said that one access road behind the existing assisted living facility is rarely used and is gated off.  

Branigan said it was used a lot last year.  He said it is gated off; but instead of coming out in front, they went down that back road.  

They hauled in a lot of aggregate and improved the road.  McIntyre said he assumed it would be covered in the covenant.  Tokos 

said the covenant has to do with the quarry and that the assisted living facility can’t object to that operation.  There are existing 

easement rights to how that land is used independent of our action.  McIntyre assumed they both would be covered under agreements; 

and Tokos confirmed that.  Summing up, Tokos said he believes that the analysis is sufficient to support the required findings.  

Branigan asked if the acreage needs to be increased to include where the road would extend.  Tokos said it’s just kind of a dirt road 

right now.  Branigan asked if the applicant would pave that.  Tokos said the improvements will come after the property is annexed.  

Tokos said this is just the first step; then annexation and zone change.  Before the actual development, they first have to get it into 

the city limits proper.  Branigan asked if they plan on physical construction occurring this year.  Tokos said that Parker could address 

that.  Berman asked if this is across the street from the new water tank; and Tokos confirmed where the water tank will go.  Tokos 

noted that there had been the earlier discussion about annexing for the water tank, but the City decided just to do a Conditional Use 

Permit; the water reservoir UGB amendment was enough.  Patrick thought eventually we will want to look at that.  He said the 

timber stuff was the only other thing that he saw; but it is fairly minor.  Berman asked if Tokos considered the transportation analysis 

to be adequate; and Tokos confirmed that he did.   

 

Proponents:  Bob Parker with ECONorthwest, the applicant’s agent on the application wanted to make a couple of comments.  

Parker said that the Commission obviously has a sense that these UGB actions are complicated.  He said this is a minor amendment 

where the appeal path is to LUBA and not in the manner of periodic review to LCDC.  He said the process for doing this is very 

prescriptive.  First is a demonstrated need; and in this instance it uses the study they did two years ago to demonstrate population 

growth and how specific housing for memory care is not addressed.  Regarding inventory, he noted that there is one other memory 

care facility in the City; and it is nearly fully occupied at this point.  Statistics on memory care suggest a substantial need for these 

kinds of facilities.  He said this may be the first of many you will be seeing in the coming years.  The argument they are making is 

that there is a need for memory care, which have specific siting requirements; in this instance, the efficiencies that are generated 

from the existing facilities.  He said the process for choosing locations is pretty precisely defined in State Statute and Goals.  There 

are steps to do the locational analysis.  First, you go to urban reserves.  If that’s not adequate, you can go to an exception area.  Then 

you can go to marginal lands.  Finally, you can go to resource lands.  There is one exception specifically for siting requirements; and 

the findings say there is.  This type of development is normally not in the Iron Mountain Overlay, but the subject property is more 

than 300 feet from the quarry.  The application indicates that annexation would be in the IMIA Overlay and as zoning changes, a 

covenant will be processed basically saying that they agree that those operations are going on.  Surrounding the proposed area to the 

north is ODOT, to the east is the City, and private timber lands about 500 feet away.  The actual logging isn’t going to affect the 

applicant.  The trucking going on has a right of access through easements.  Parker said the only other issue is the Goal 12 issue; the 

transportation findings.  Under State rules, the applicant could choose to defer until the point they change the zoning.  They did the 

analysis basically demonstrating that the additional bedrooms won’t have substantial impact on traffic so no additional analysis is 

necessary.  The final comment Parker wanted to make was that they notified adjacent property owners, and they have had some 

conversation with ODOT’s staff early on; and ODOT was satisfied with the IMIA Overlay providing protection with their ongoing 

activities there.   

 

There were no other proponents or opponents present wishing to testify.  

 

Patrick closed the hearing at 7:25 for Commission deliberation.  Berman said that this sounds very straightforward to him.  He said 

he was completely blown away by the complexity when he thought it should be simple.  He understands that the regulations are in 

place to protect the larger picture.  He did see that ECO did a nice job of providing the arguments.  His only question would be 

whether there was any chance LUBA will have a problem with it; but he doesn’t see any problems.  McIntyre agreed.  He saw no 

problem with it.  He said he is vaguely familiar with the area; not specifically where the addition is.  He thinks it is a good plan.  



3  Planning Commission meeting minutes 4/14/14. 

Croteau said this will fulfill a need.  He found it in order and is favorably inclined.  Fisher said he had a concern about the IMIA 

Overlay and later on if something goes wrong.  He wouldn’t want that.  Otherwise, he thought it’s a good thing.  East concurred with 

the rest of the Commissioners.  He believes we need that type of facility.  It will serve the city and its citizens well.  He agreed the 

application should be moved forward.  Branigan said that he is very familiar with that piece of land.  With the aging population, the 

City could certainly stand the addition.  We need more assisted living and memory care units.  He thought everything was addressed.  

He doesn’t see why LUBA would have any objections to it.  He concurred we should have a motion to move this on. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Branigan to forward to the City Council a favorable recommendation for a minor amendment 

to the Urban Growth Boundary (File 1-UGB-14 / 1-CP-14) to include the 0.61-acre site to construct the memory care addition.  He 

amended his motion to include the adjoining 50-feet along the south side of the expansion area for road improvements to provide 

access.  Commissioner McIntyre seconded the motion as amended.  The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.       

 

Parker noted that the question had been raised earlier, and it is the applicant’s intention to start as soon as possible.  He said there 

will be a City Council hearing, and the County has to give approval on the action.  The annexation and zone change will come in 

almost immediately after the County takes action.  Whether this can happen this year depends on the County’s agenda.  The County 

will see some additional findings because the County has additional criteria.  Parker also notified Patrick Wingard of DLCD and 

didn’t hear anything back from him.                             

 

G. New Business.  No new business. 

 

H. Unfinished Business.   

 

1. Reminder of Volunteer Appreciation Banquet, April 22nd at 6:00 p.m. at the Oregon Coast Aquarium.  Tokos said that he hoped 

the Commissioners could attend.  Branigan, Croteau, and maybe McIntyre said they should be able to make it.   

   

I.  Director’s Comments.   

 

1.    Regarding UGB amendments, Tokos wanted to give the Commissioners a heads up that a public hearing with the County Board 

of Commissioners on the reservoir UBG amendment was held; and they directed their Counsel to prepare for annexation this week.  

Tokos said it was last May that the Commission raised it up to the City Council; and it was submitted to the County in June.  The 

Lincoln County Planning Commission held a hearing within about thirty days, but they didn’t issue a final order until February.  It 

finally got in front of the Board of Commissioners.  Tokos talked to Onno Husing, Lincoln County Planning Director, and told him 

that wouldn’t have been good if we had a pending project that was eating us alive; but it happened to not be the case.  We are still 

going through getting funds to offset some expenses in doing detailed analyses we need to do.  We are still going through the process 

of assessing the structural conditions and what remediation options are.  So this delay hasn’t held us up.  It would hang up someone 

like the assisted living facility, which we hope will move quicker.  As soon as the Board of Commissioners acts on this, it will go to 

DLCD.  Their staff said it will be handled by the director, not the full commission; which is a good sign.   

 

Berman asked if Big Creek Road will be a two-lane road.  Tokos said he’s not exactly sure with respect to that.  There was a 

Memorandum of Understanding agreement that the City Council signed off on outlining steps necessary to transfer the rest of Big 

Creek Road.  We legalized the part of the road within the city limits; and the County will have to legalize the rest of it.  The transfer 

would happen as annexation occurs.  The process is mapped out, and we will initiate annexation as soon as the UGB amendment is 

final.  The annexation of just over 300 acres will be before the Planning Commission in a few months.  Berman asked if the MOU 

is about maintaining the road.  Tokos said that is part of it.  The City is not equipped to maintain gravel.  We will just do a maintenance 

agreement with the County and work with them.  The City Council recognizes that there is a cost with jurisdictional control; but it 

will make things easier at the end of the day.  Tokos said that he also emphasized with the County Commissioners, after Norm Ferber 

testified that this is just a way for the City to side step the conditional use permit process and avoid public comment, that the 

conditional use process was created to protect timber land and this is a public facility so it isn’t necessary.  Besides, there will be 

public outreach during annexation; and a GO bond is likely, which means lots of public outreach.  So, the conditional use process is 

something that should go away.  There will be lots of opportunity for public input as we get a better idea of the problems and the 

full range of solutions.  Tokos said there has been an influx of grant funding with the Oregon Department of Water Resources to 

deal with these types of issues; which is a big plus.   

 

2.  Tokos noted that the Nye Beach Design Review Overlay Ad Hoc Work Group held their first meeting, and the next meeting is 

scheduled for April 23rd.  They are starting to identify issues that need to be worked through.  That will eventually be brought back 

to the Planning Commission.                   

 

J.  Adjournment.  Having no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 7:39 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

____________________________________ 

Wanda Haney, Executive Assistant 


















































	Agenda_4-28-2014_PC_Wk_Session-No_Mtg
	PC_ Agenda_4-28-14
	Draft_PC_Wk_Session_4-14-14
	Draft_PC_Minutes_4-14-14
	SR-A
	Site_PlanA1
	A2-Elevations
	A3_Aerial
	B_Notice-C
	D-E-F

